
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 11th March, 2020

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: Guildhall



2

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Information for Members of the Public

Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 
Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, 
access to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt 
as you face the Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall.   There is 
dedicated disabled parking space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings 
are held on the ground floor, which can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user 
or have restricted mobility and you wish to attend a meeting, please telephone or email the 
officer mentioned below in advance and we will make any necessary arrangements to assist 
your visit.

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect 
copies of Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents 
used in the preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of 
each report. Part II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for 
which it is anticipated that the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports 
nor background papers are open to public inspection.

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to 
report on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio 
recording and providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used 
to report on the proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. 
Accordingly, the attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and 
broadcast. By choosing to attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your 
consent to being filmed or recorded and for any footage to be broadcast or published.  

Please note the Council audio records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings 
are published on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will 
be posted in the meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the 
City Council he/she will be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio 
being published live to the Council’s website. The Chairman of the meeting, can at their 
discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if in their opinion, continuing to do so would 
prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider that continued recording might 
infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision.

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is 
allowed for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any 
matter on the Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 
p.m. on the last working day before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing 
the officer mentioned below.

If you have any queries about this Agenda or require any details of background papers, or to 
discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, film, video or sound recording please 
contact Julian Pugh, Democratic Services Administrator, Democratic Services, 
Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct line); E-Mail 
Address:  committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of 
ethnic minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information.

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also 
available electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website 
Address: worcester.gov.uk



3

Standards Committee
Wednesday, 11 March 2020

Members of the Committee:-
Chairman: Councillor Matthew Lamb (L)

Vice-Chairman: Councillor Andrew Roberts (C)

Councillor Jenny Barnes (LCo)
Mr Dave Carney (Co-opted)
Councillor Jo Hodges (L)
Mr Roger Knight (Co-opted)
Mrs Dawn Merriman (Co-opted)

Councillor Chris Mitchell (C)
Mr Raymond Needham JP (Co-opted)
Councillor James Stanley (C)
Mr Alan Tidy (Co-opted)

C = Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative
LD = Liberal Democrat

AGENDA

Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)

1. Appointment of Substitutes 

2. Declarations of Interest To receive any declarations of interest.

3. Public Participation Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be 
allowed, each speaker being allocated a 
maximum of five minutes, for members of 
the public to present a petition, ask a 
question, or comment on any matter on the 
Agenda or within the remit of the 
Committee.

4. Minutes 
Page(s): 1 - 4

Of the meeting held on 13th November 
2019 to be approved and signed.

5. Updated Pan-Worcestershire 
Code Of Conduct For Members 
Page(s): 5 - 8
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Sian Stroud, 

Deputy Director – 
Governance and 
Monitoring Officer
Tel: 01905 
722017

That the Committee note the report.

6. Complaints Made Under the Code 
of Conduct 
Page(s): 9 - 10

To advise the Committee of any complaints 
made under the Members’ Code of Conduct.



4

Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Sian Stroud, 

Deputy Director – 
Governance and 
Monitoring Officer
Tel: 01905 
722017

7. Registers of Members' and 
Officers' Gifts and Hospitality and 
Register of Interests 

To review the registers of Members’ and 
Officers’ gifts and hospitality and register of 
interests. The registers will be available for 
inspection from 6.30p.m. onwards, so that 
Members can have the opportunity to 
review them either before or at the 
meeting.

8. Any Other Business Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of 
sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration.

9. Items Involving the Disclosure of 
Exempt information 

The Committee is invited to pass the 
following resolution:

That under Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the press and public 
be excluded from the meeting for the 
following items of business on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of 
information as defined in Schedule 12A of 
the said Act.

PART II
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PRIVATE)

Exempt – not for publication because the item contains information relating to any 
individual and also relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person – 

categories 1 and 3.

10. Minutes (Exempt Items) 
Page(s): 11 - 12

Of the meeting held on 13th November 
2019 to be approved and signed.

11. Reports of the Local Government 
and Social Care Ombudsman 
Page(s): 13 - 40
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Rich Morris, 

Corporate Policy 
and Strategy 
Officer
Tel: 01905 
722502

To advise the Committee of three upheld 
complaints by the Local Government and 
Social Care Ombudsman.



5



This page is intentionally left blank



STANDARDS COMMITTEE

13th November 2019

Present: Councillor Matthew Lamb in the Chair

Councillors Barnes, Hodges, Mitchell, 
Roberts (Vice-Chairman) and Stanley 

Also in Attendance:
Mr Roger Knight, St. Peter’s Parish Council 
Mrs Dawn Merriman, Warndon Parish 
Council
Mr Alan Tidy, St. Peter’s Parish Council
Mr Ray Needham JP, Co-opted Member

Officers: Sian Stroud, Deputy Director – Governance 
and Monitoring Officer

20 Appointment of Substitutes 

None.

21 Declarations of Interest 

None.

22 Public Participation 

None.

23 Minutes 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 26th June 2019 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

24 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual Review Letter 
2019 

The Committee considered Annual Review Letter produced by the Local 
Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LG&SCO) for the year ending 31st 
March 2019. The Monitoring Officer presented the report and highlighted the main 
points.

In summary, the overall number of complaints and enquiries received by the 
Ombudsman about Worcester City Council increased from 11 in 2017/18 to 13 in 
2018/19. The number of cases where an investigation was carried out by the 
Ombudsman also increased from 8 in 2017/18 to 15 in 2018/19. However, the 
Upheld Rate decreased from 50% to 29%. Two upheld decision were received. 
However, the LG&SCO did not produce a report about either case.

In the ensuing discussion, the following main points were made:

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



13th November 2019 2

 The increase in the total number of complaints received by the LG&SCO 
indicates that there are lessons to be learnt. The internal complaints 
management procedures will be reviewed to endeavour to resolve complaints 
at an earlier stage. 

 It was noted that Letter indicated 13 complaints and enquiries had been 
received, yet a total of 15 decisions had been made. The Monitoring officer will 
seek clarification on this point.

RESOLVED: That the Committee note the Annual Review Letter of the 
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman for the period covering 1st 
April 2018 to 31st March 2019.

25 Complaints Made Under the Members' Code of Conduct 

The Committee were advised by the Monitoring Officer that, since the last 
meeting, 3 complaints had been received. Before making a decision in relation to 
each complaint, the Monitoring Officer consulted with one of the Independent 
Persons from the pool appointed to consider complaints. The first complaint was 
considered amenable to informal resolution. The second and third complaints were 
considered to fall outside of the remit of the Code and no further action was 
taken.

RESOLVED: That the Committee note the report.

26 Response to the Nolan Review and Updated Pan-Worcestershire Code of 
Conduct for Members 

The Committee considered a report from the Monitoring Officer on the Nolan 
Committee’s assessment of whether existing structures, processes and practices 
are conducive to high standards of conduct in local government. The Nolan 
Committee’s report made recommendations for improvement to government in 
relation to the legislative regime, and best practice recommendations to local 
government. 

Key recommendations for government to consider were that local authorities 
should regain the power to suspend members (for up to 6 months) as a sanction 
for breaching the Code; the criminal offence regime in relation to Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests should be abolished but the classes of registrable interests 
broadened; a register of gifts and hospitality be re-established; and independent 
members of standards committees should be allowed to vote. 

Local government would have to await the government's response to the 
recommendations. In the meantime it was within the Council’s power to review 
and act on the best practice recommendations. 

The Monitoring Officers for all Worcestershire local authorities had reviewed the 
current Members’ Code of Conduct (the “pan-Worcestershire Code”) and the best 
practice recommendations. The Monitoring Officer’s report included a commentary 
on how these are currently being addressed.

Page 2



13th November 2019 3

There remained a consensus that a pan-Worcestershire Code remains the best 
approach for the benefit of the public, members, and good governance. The 
Monitoring Officers considered that the current Code was fit for purpose, but 
would benefit from a few relatively small amendments flowing from some of the 
Nolan best practice recommendations relevant to the Code. A revised draft was 
attached to the report, showing the proposed changes. This draft was currently 
being considered for approval by all Worcestershire local authorities’ standards 
and ethics committees and it would be open to the parish councils in 
Worcestershire to also adopt the revised draft.

The Monitoring Officer responded to questions from Committee members on 
detailed aspects of the report.

The Committee concluded that the draft Code of Conduct set out at Appendix 2 
should be endorsed and recommended to the Council for adoption.

With regard to the Council’s Complaints Procedures, the Standards Committee last 
reviewed and approved these in 2014. In response to the best practice 
recommendations and based on experience of using the Procedures, the 
Monitoring Officer proposed to review those Procedures and report to a future 
meeting of the Standards Committee on any potential changes to the Complaints 
Procedures which may be beneficial.

RESOLVED: That the Committee agree to:

1. note the recommendations of the report published by the National 
Committee on Standards in Public Life on ethical standards in local 
government, as set out in Appendix 1 of the report;

2. note the discussions which have taken place between the Monitoring 
Officers of the principal authorities within Worcestershire in response 
to those recommendations;

3. endorse the principle of a pan-Worcestershire Code of Conduct for 
members; 

4. endorse the draft Code of Conduct set out at Appendix 2 and 
recommend that Council adopts it; and

5. note that a further report will be brought to Committee following a 
review of the Council’s Procedures for the assessment of complaints 
under the Code of Conduct.

27 Registers of Members' and Officers' Gifts and Hospitality and Register of 
Interests 

The Committee were given the opportunity to review the registers of Members’ 
and Officers’ gifts and hospitality and register of interests.

28 Any Other Business 

None.

Page 3



13th November 2019 4

29 Items Involving the Disclosure of Exempt Information 

RESOLVED: That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of information as defined in Schedule 12A of the said Act.

30 Minutes (Exempt Items) 

RESOLVED: That the minutes (Exempt items) of the meeting held on 26th 
June 2019 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

31 Reports of the Local Government Ombudsman 

The Monitoring Officer advised the Committee of an upheld complaint by the Local 
Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LG&SCO). The Monitoring Officer 
advised that the final decision statement had not yet been published by the 
Ombudsman on their website. The Ombudsman had therefore requested that the 
report be considered by the Committee in private.

The Committee noted the findings.

Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. – 7.50p.m.

Chairman at the meeting on
11th March 2020

Page 4



Report to: Standards Committee, 11th March 2020

Report of: Monitoring Officer

Subject: UPDATED PAN-WORCESTERSHIRE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Committee note the report.

2. Information

2.1 At the last meeting on 11th November 2019, the Committee received a report on the 
outcome of the Nolan Committee’s review of the existing structures, processes and 
practices on ethical standards in local government. Members will recall that the 
Government's response to the legislative recommendations is still awaited, but in the 
meantime it is within the Council’s power to review and act on the Best Practice 
recommendations. 

2.2 The Pan-Worcestershire Code of Conduct for Members was reviewed by the 
Monitoring Officers for Worcestershire local authorities and the Committee 
considered a revised draft Code of Conduct at the November meeting. The revised 
Code was endorsed and will be recommended for adoption by the Council at its 
meeting on 24th March 2020. A number of the other Worcester authorities have 
already adopted it.

2.3 The Monitoring Officer received an email from the Local Government Association 
dated 18th February 2020, providing an update and timetable for the national review. 
A copy of this is attached at Appendix 1. The timetable is ambitious, suggesting 
that a new national code will have been consulted on and launched by the LGA by 
the end of June. It is of course possible that this timetable will be affected by other 
national events and may become extended.

2.4 As explained in the email, the consultation will be launched on 16th March 2020 and 
the current timetable, will close on 24 April. It should be noted that this proposed 
consultation period sits within the local government elections purdah period. If this 
timetable is adhered to by the LGA it may limit the level of response and 
engagement by local authorities. 

2.5 Monitoring Officers will be sent the draft consultation code for comments. Working 
on the current proposed consultation timetable, it is proposed that a special meeting 
of Standards Committee is convened during the month of April to ensure that 
Worcester City Council can submit a consultation response which has the response of 
its Members. The Monitoring Officer will circulate the consultation to all councillors 
inviting comments as well as briefing Group Leaders individually. This feedback can 
then incorporated into the Council’s consultation response which will be approved by 
the Standards Committee before it is submitted. 

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



Ward(s): All
Contact Officer: Sian Stroud, Monitoring Officer. Tel:  01905 722019
Background Papers: None

Page 6



From: ModelCode [mailto:ModelCode@local.gov.uk] 
Sent: 24 February 2020 10:28
Subject: UPDATING MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT
Importance: High

Dear Colleagues. 
 

We refer to the above matter and write to update you on progress with updating the 
Model Code of Conduct. As you know the CoPSL report published on 30 January 
2019 recommended that “The Local Government Association should create an 
updated model code of conduct, in consultation with representative bodies of 
Councillors and officers of all tiers of local government in consultation with 
representatives of following the recommendations of the Committee of Standards in 
Public Life report publishes on 30 January 2019”.

The Board of the LGA at its meeting on 11 September 2019 (report attached) 
considered and agreed to commence reviewing of the Code ahead of central 
government’s response to the recommendations of the report. 
This work is part of a wider programme of work on civility in public life and in 
response to rising local government concern about the increasing incidence of 
public, member-to-member and officer/member intimidation and abuse and overall 
behavioural standards and expectations in public debate, decision making and 
engagement. Report attached. We appointed Hoey Ainscough through a competitive 
exercise to work with us to review the Code.
 
If the code is completed before any government response Local Authorities will be 
able to adopt the Code. Some of the recommendations in the report for example the 
power to suspend councillors (recommendation 16) , requires legislation which 
means that provisions cannot be included in the Code.
 
The first stage of the review was the gathering of views and good practice examples, 
and a series of workshops with national representative bodies (Monitoring and 
Democratic Services officers and elected members from the main parties), to review 
what worked and develop some broad principles. Three workshops were held on 17, 
20 and 21 January 2020. Please find attached the slides used at the workshops. The 
workshops discussions went very well and there were mutual concerns expressed by 
members and officers about the current codes, inconsistences in application, lack of 
guidance and sanctions.
 
We set out below the next stages of the review process. You will be sent the draft 
consultation code following the board meeting for your comments.
 
 Summary of code drafting timetable/milestones
 

 3 February –2 March preparation of draft code and report for LGA Board
 Wednesday 11 March – Draft Code to Board for consideration and approval 

for consultation 

Page 7 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

mailto:ModelCode@local.gov.uk


 W/C 16 March – launch of consultation period (6 weeks takes us up to Friday 
24 April)

 W/C 16 March – Round table discussion with key stakeholders (including 
LGO)

 RISK – Thursday 26 March start of pre-election period for local government 
elections

 Friday 24 April – close of consultation
 Monday 27 April – Friday 15 April (3 weeks) review of consultation findings 

and final drafting
 Note – Thursday 7 May local government elections
 Friday 15 May – deadline for final draft from Hoey Ainscough
 w/c 18 May – Drafting of report for Board /final edits to code
 Monday 25 May – LGA deadline for submission of report for Board
 Wednesday 3 June – Final copy to Board for approval
 W/C 8 June – LGA design and print and final editing for launch
 Tuesday 30 June – Launch at first day of LGA conference, Harrogate

 
Central Government response to CoPSL
 
Some of you have asked but we do not have any information on central 
government’s response to the recommendations of the CoPSL report.
MHCLG have scheduled a Monitoring officers network meeting for 13 March 
2020, where we hope to receive an update.
 
Could you kindly share this email with your Head of Democratic Services officers 
please?
 

Hope you find this helpful but please come back if you have any questions.
 
 
Best Wishes

Thelma P Stober
Corporate Legal Adviser
Solicitor, Mediator & Company Secretary
Local Government Association
PSAA
18 Smith Square
London SW1P 3HZ

Page 8



Report to: Standards Committee, 11 March 2020

Report of: Monitoring Officer

Subject: COMPLAINTS MADE UNDER THE MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

1. Recommendation:  

1.1 That the report be noted.

2. Purpose of Report

2.1 To advise the Committee of any complaints made under the Members’ Code of 
Conduct.

3. Background

3.1 The Council’s Procedure adopted by the Council in March 2014 provides that a 
complaint will initially be considered by the Monitoring Officer and an Independent 
Person once the Monitoring Officer is in receipt of all relevant information to enable 
an initial assessment of the complaint to take place.  After consulting the 
Independent Person, the Monitoring Officer will decide either to take no action on the 
allegation, to resolve the complaint informally or to arrange an investigation.

4. Complaints

4.1 Since the last meeting of the Committee, three complaints have been received. 
Before making a decision in relation to each complaint, the Monitoring Officer 
consulted with one of the Independent Persons from the pool appointed to consider 
complaints. A summary of the outcomes and/or current status is as follows:

Complaint 1: no action
Complaint 2: informal resolution recommended
Complaint 3: currently being assessed

Ward(s): All
Contact Officer: Sian Stroud, Monitoring Officer. Tel:  01905 722019
Background Papers: None

Page 9 Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 11 Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 13 Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19 Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25 Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31 Agenda Item 11
Appendix 3

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Updated Pan-Worcestershire Code Of Conduct For Members
	Code of Conduct Appendix 1

	6 Complaints Made Under the Code of Conduct
	10 Minutes (Exempt Items)
	11 Reports of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
	Appendix 1 - EXEMPT ITEM
	Appendix 2 - EXEMPT ITEM
	Appendix 3 - EXEMPT ITEM


